

Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting Held 21 August 2023

Our Values: Leadership • Integrity • Progressiveness • Commitment • Accountability • Adaptability

Record No. 23/9916

Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chambers, Lockhart on Monday, 21 August 2023 commencing at 5.00pm.

PRESENT

Cr G Verdon (Mayor), Cr A Rockliff (Deputy Mayor), Cr F Day OAM, Cr G Driscoll, Cr J Hunter, Cr I Marston, and Cr J Walker.

Cr Driscoll attended via audio-visual link.

Also in attendance were the General Manager, Director Corporate and Community Services, Director Engineering & Environmental Services, Tourism and Economic Development Officer, and Executive Assistant.

The meeting opened with a prayer, followed by an Acknowledgement of Country.

The Mayor reminded Councillors of their ethical obligations as reflected in the oath and affirmation of office, and the Code of Conduct.

The Mayor also informed all persons present that the proceedings of the meeting were being recorded.

APOLOGIES

132/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Rockliff and Walker that the apologies from Cr Mathews and Cr Sharp be accepted and leave of absence be granted.

REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR ATTENDANCE BY AUDIO-VISUAL LINK

Cr Driscoll has requested to attend this meeting by audio-visual link. Cr Driscoll also requested leave of absence for the September 2023 Council meeting.

133/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Day and Marston that Cr Driscoll's request to attend via audiovisual link be granted, and leave of absence be granted to Cr Driscoll for the September meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES ORDINARY MEETING HELD 17 JULY 2023

134/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Rockliff and Hunter that the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on Monday, 17 July 2023 as printed and circulated be taken as read and confirmed.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS

The General Manager and the Director of Corporate and Community Services declared an interest in Staff Report 2: Spirit of the Land – Request for Financial Assistance.

This is page 2 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS

135/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Marston and Hunter that Standing Orders be suspended to allow the Tourism and Economic Development Officer to present his six-monthly report to Council, the time being 5.01pm.

RESUMPTION OF STANDING ORDERS

136/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Day and Marston that Standing Orders resume, the time being 5.23pm.

MAYORAL MINUTE

Nil.

REPORT ON MAYORAL & COUNCILLOR ACTIVITIES

The Mayor, Cr Verdon, verbally reported on activities during the past month as follows: 8 August Along with the General Manager attended the Police and Community Consultation Group Meeting at Yerong Creek. Along with Cr Marston and Cr Walker attended remembrance ceremony at Tootool. 8 August Along with Crs Driscoll and Rockliff undertook the annual performance review of the 9 August General Manager. 16 August Along with the General Manager attended the Bush Summit at Wodonga. 16 August Along with Cr Marston and Director of Engineering attended a briefing for residents of Emily Street, The Rock for drainage issues. Cr Marston reported the following activities: 3-4 August With the General Manager, attended the Country Mayors Association meeting. 8 August Attended the Tootool Remembrance ceremony with the Mayor and Cr Walker 17 August Represented the Mayor at the Riverina Volunteer Awards presentation. Cr Day reported the following activities: Attended the Citizenship Ceremony at the Council Chamber. 20 July 3 August Attended Lockhart Central School's Education Week celebration. 10 August Hosted Coffee with a Councillor in Lockhart. 137/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Rockliff and Walker that the Report on Mayoral and Councillor activities be received.

URGENT MATTERS

Nil.

NOTICE OF MOTION

Nil.

This is page 3 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Nil.

DELEGATES' REPORTS

1. DELEGATES REPORT – NSW COUNTRY MAYORS ASSOCIATION MEETING HELD IN SYDNEY ON 4 AUGUST 2023

(GM: 23/9194)

I attended a meeting of the Country Mayors Association in Sydney on 4 August 2023 on behalf of the Mayor.

The Country Mayor's Association meeting was addressed by:

- The Hon Penny Sharpe, Minister for Climate Change, Minister for Energy, Minister for the Environment, and Minister for Heritage.
- The Hon Tara Moriarty, Minister for Agriculture, Minister for Regional NSW, Minister for Western NSW.
- Mr Simon Draper, CEO NSW Reconstruction Authority.
- Cr Durriea Turley, President of Local Government NSW.
- The Hon Dugald Saunders, Shadow Minister for Regional NSW and Shadow Minister for Agriculture and Natural Resources.
- The Hon Wendy Tuckerman, Shadow Minister for Local Government and Shadow Minister for Small Business.
- The Hon Mark Speakman, Leader of the Opposition.

The following points were noted:

- The biodiversity offsets scheme is currently being reviewed with the report to be tabled in Parliament later this month. Some councils have expressed concern that the scheme can be a constraint on development.
- Concern was expressed at speculation that the Resources for Regions grant program may be abolished. This program is available to mine affected local government areas.
- Funds previously set aside for Round 6 of the Stronger Country Communities Fund are also under review by the new Government.
- The NSW Government has announced that agreement has been reached with the Australian Government to expand the single employer model for GPs and emergency doctors in rural and regional NSW. This initiative was first trialled in the Murrumbidgee Local Health District.
- The Country Mayors Association has, for advocacy purposes, prepared a Budget Priorities document for distribution to Government Ministers in the lead up to the State Budget. The five key priority areas highlighted in the document are financial sustainability, housing, labour, transport and roads, and health.
- An Opposition MP has introduced a Private Members Bill that if passed would make it clear that the RFS red fleet assets are owned by the State Government and not councils. The Bill is yet to be considered by Shadow Cabinet.
- The Country Mayors Association, in conjunction with Wagga Wagga City Council, is convening a Regional and Rural Health Forum in Wagga on 15 September 2023.
- Several new members were admitted taking the membership to 84 out of a possible 92 councils.

Cr lan Marston

This is page 4 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

2. POLICE AND COMMUNITY CONSULTATION GROUP - 8 AUGUST 2022 AT YERONG CREEK (DEES: 23/9595)

A quarterly meeting of the Police and Community Consultation Group was held at the Yerong Creek Bowling Club on Tuesday, 8 August 2023.

The meeting was attended by NSW Police and representatives of licensed premises and community organisations in the Shire. The following matters were noted:

- The Committee welcomed Inspector Justin Falkiner and Senior Constable Phillip Bitterlin of the NSW Police who recently transferred to the region in their respective roles.
- The local Police force will be back to a full complement from 1 October 2023 with the replacement of Constable Conor Dewar.
- Police representatives provided statistics on the number of incident responses since the previous meeting.
- Community representatives advised of forthcoming events in their local areas.
- Attention was drawn to the issue of the Kings Own Hotel site at The Rock which has been subject to vandalism etc. The Police confirmed that regular patrols of the area were being carried out. The Committee recommended that the Council investigate the possibility of acquiring the site.
- It was also recommended that the Council lobbies the State Government for the establishment of an ambulance station at The Rock having regard to the travel time from Yerong Creek to either Wagga or Lockhart.

Cr G Verdon Delegate

138/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Walker and Rockliff that the Delegates' Reports be received.

STATUS REPORT/PRÉCIS OF CORRESPONDENCE ISSUED

Status Report: Council Resolutions and Tasks to be finalised

(GM: 23/8368)

Minute No:	Officer to Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken		
	Ordinary Council Meeting held 17 July 2023				
130/23	GM	 LG NSW Annual Conference 1. Appoint the Mayor as its voting delegate at the 2023 LGNSW Annual Conference; and 2. Nominates one other Councillor to attend the Annual Conference together with the Mayor and the General Manager. 	Awaiting confirmation of other councillor to attend the Conference with the Mayor to complete conference registration.		

This is page 5 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

Minute No:	Officer to Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken
123/23	DCCS	Request for Financial Assistance – Yerong Creek Recreation Ground Management Committee	
		1. Council provides financial assistance in the amount of \$27,000 to the Yerong Creek Recreation Ground Management Committee and that the contribution be funded from the "Community Financial Assistance S356" internally restricted reserve, with all repairs and maintenance to be met by the Management Committee.	 Council is liaising with representatives of the management committee in sourcing a second-hand mower.
		2. Existing Toro zero turn mower be transported to the Lockhart Depot for Council's mechanics to undertake an assessment of repairs required. Any repairs up to the value of \$5,000 be costed to Plant Running Expenses.	 Transport of Toro zero turn mower to Lockhart is to be arranged.
122/23	DCCS	Request for Financial Assistance – Southern Sports Academy	Payment processed. Complete
		Council makes a \$400 contribution to the Southern Sports Academy.	Complete
121/23	GM	 Request for Financial Assistance – Lockhart Progress Association 1. Council contributes an amount of \$500.00 to the Lockhart Progress Association for Christmas decorations. 	Correspondence forwarded to the Lockhart, The Rock and Yerong Creek Progress Associations. Complete
		2. The same financial contribution be offered to The Rock and Yerong Creek Progress Associations.	
		3. The Progress Associations be requested to consult shop owners prior to placing decorations outside their premises or on structures attached to their buildings.	

This is page 6 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

Minute No:	Officer to Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken
119/23	GM	Phase 4 Local Roads and Community Infrastructure Grants Program	Nominated projects submitted to the Department of Infrastructure and
		Council nominates the following projects for funding under Phase 4 of the LRCI grant program:	awaiting approval.
		Part A: Local road and community infrastructure projects	
		1. The Rock Show Society – new show pavilion \$ 200,000	
		2. Figtree Road intersection \$ 100,000	
		3. Pleasant Hills Tennis Courts \$ 80,000	
		4. Lockhart Community gym/health & wellbeing centre \$ 290,000	
		5. Lockhart Golf Club storage shed \$ 40,000	
		6. Pleasant Hills Recreation Ground amenities block \$ 100,000	
		7. Roads \$ 36,561	
		Part B: Road projects	
		 Shoulder widening – "Davidsons Hill", Yerong Creek Mangoplah Rd (500m) \$ 300,000 	
		2. Vincents Road – seal 2km \$225,000	
		Ordinary Council Meeting held 19 Jur	ne 2023
100/23	DEES	Proposed Speed Limit Changes – Green Street, Lockhart	Documentation being prepared for submission to Transport for NSW.
		That Council seeks approval through Transport for NSW to introduce a 40km/h high pedestrian zone in Green Street, between Matthews Street and Day Street.	
96/23	DCCS	Request for Financial Assistance – The Rock Memorial Bowling Club	Loan agreement signed, payment processed.
		that Council provide an interest free loan in the amount of \$20,000 to The Rock Memorial Bowling Club to enable the replacement of their synthetic bowling greens project to proceed.	Complete.

This is page 7 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

	Officer o Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken
95/23	GM	 Magnolia Lodge and Youth Flats – Development Options That Council approach the Department of Communities and Justice - Housing to gauge the Department's interest in: a) Constructing additional independent living units and/or youth flats on the existing sites in accordance with Option 3 outlined in this report; or b) Consenting to Council subdividing the land on which the Youth Flats are situated with the new vacant lot created by the subdivision being developed in its own right in accordance with Option 4 outlined in this report; or c) Transferring its equity in the properties to Council free of cost in return for an undertaking from Council that the land will be further developed for independent living units and/or rental accommodation to help alleviate the housing shortage in accordance with Option 5 outlined in this report. 	Verbal and written contact has been made with the Department of Communities and Justice – Housing and a response is awaited. Response has been received. Report to next meeting.
		Ordinary Council Meeting held 15 Ma	y 2023
70/23	DCCS	 Appointment of Section 355 Committees That Council: 1. Establish the Lockhart Golf Course Management Committee pursuant to section 355 of the Local Government Act and delegate to that Committee, care, control and management of the Lockhart Golf Course, being part Crown Reserve 620047 as shown on the attached plan, pursuant to section 377 of the Local Government Act. 2. Establish the Lockhart Airstrip Management Committee pursuant to section 355 of the Local Government Act and delegate to that Committee pursuant to section 355 of the Local Government Act. 2. Establish the Lockhart Airstrip Management Committee pursuant to section 355 of the Local Government Act and delegate to that Committee, care, control and management of the Lockhart Airstrip and that part of Crown Reserve 620047 on which the hangars are situated as shown on the attached plan, pursuant to 	 Meeting with Treasurer of the Lockhart Golf Club has occurred with the S355 to commence as of 1 July 2023. Complete A meeting of stakeholders is being organised.

This is page 8 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Minute No:	Officer to Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken		
	Ordinary Council Meeting held 20 March 2023				
44/23	DCCS/ DEES	Lockhart Airstrip That Council:			
		 Prepares a new lease for the use of land being Certificate of Title Volume 15397 Folio 249 being Part Portion 49 for use as an airstrip for the amount of \$2,500. 			
		• Renews the lease for a period of 12 months, during which time the use of the airstrip be monitored and the formation of a sec355 Committee to manage the airstrip and associated facilities be investigated.	Formation of S355 committee has been approved.		
		 Undertakes a review of the lease to ensure any clauses referring to the Community Forest comply with the gazetted use of that Crown reserve; and 	In progress.		
		 Investigates options for leasing the airstrip hangars to interested parties. 	To be undertaken by s355 committee once operational.		
30/23	DCCS	Notice of Motion – Cr Day – International Day for People with Disabilities Council considers, subject to funding availability, celebrating International Day for People with Disability held annually on 3 December which aims to increase public awareness, inclusion, understanding and acceptance of people with a disability and celebrate their achievements and contributions to the community, at a venue to be determined."	Superseded: Combined with Questions & Statements 17 July 2023 – Cr Day -International Volunteer Day. Complete.		
		Ordinary Council Meeting held 13 Febru	uary 2023		
26/23	GM	Proposed Acquisition of Land That, subject to obtaining the landowner's consent, Council authorises the General Manager to prepare and submit a development application for the development of a car park on the land situated at Lot 2 DP1196082.	Development application has been lodged with landowner's consent and currently being assessed.		

This is page 9 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

Minute No:	Officer to Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken
9/23	GM	 Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements In accordance with the outcome of the Councillor Workshop held earlier in the day, Council nominates the following projects for funding under the Local Government Recovery Grants Program: 1. Emily Street, The Rock – drainage improvements 2. Cole Street, Yerong Creek – drainage improvements 3. Green Street West, Lockhart – drainage improvements 4. Flood Detour Road – culvert installation 	Projects submitted to the Office of Local Government and funds received. More detailed costings and work plan now being prepared. OLG Portal has not been opened.
		 Waste Mgt Facilities Access Roads Community information initiative (social media) Access Road – Golf Club 	
		Ordinary Council Meeting held 19 Septe	mber 2022
195/22	GM	Model Media Policy – Consultation Draft That the information be noted and consideration be given to adopting the Model Media Policy when Council's current Media Policy 1.2 is scheduled for review in October 2023.	Deferred for consideration in October 2023.
		Ordinary Council Meeting held 18 Ju	ly 2022
141/22	GM	Request for Council to Purchase Private Access Council agrees to the request in principle subject to Council and the applicants agreeing to a reasonable cost sharing arrangement.	Survey plan has signed by the affected landowners and now forwarded to the Mortgagee Bank for signature. Application for subdivision certificate has been approved and instructions issued for preparation of a contract of sale.

This is page 10 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Minute No:	Officer to Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken		
	Ordinary Council Meeting held 16 May 2022				
109/22	GM	 Tender – 109 Green Street Council declines to accept the tender received from ASCO Group (Aust) Pty Ltd for the provision of public toilets at 109 Green Street Lockhart and seek separate quotations for the individual components of the project for the following reasons: a) Seeking separate quotations and being able to negotiate with different contractors for the different components of the project will provide more flexibility in seeking the most cost-effective solution bearing in mind that the funding approved under Round 4 of the Stronger Country Community Fund is less than the amount for which Council applied. 	Public toilets complete. Paving and landscaping works rescoped. Materials being ordered with works to commence shortly.		
		 b) Accepting the one tender that has been received for the public toilets without a contract in place for the community space component of the project will prove problematic as the community space and landscaping is critical to providing access to the public toilets. 			
		Ordinary Council Meeting held 21 Mar	rch 2022		
56/22	GM	Development of Lockhart Industrial Estate Council prepares a subdivision application for the development of Stage 3 of the Lockhart Industrial Estate.	Development application has been lodged and is currently being assessed.		
-		Ordinary Council Meeting held 16 Aug	ust 2021		
148/21	GM	Proposed "Tim Fischer Way" Council to reinstate investigations into the erection of tourism signage indicating "Tim Fischer Way".	Proposed to incorporate "Tim Fischer Way" touring route on new Visit Lockhart Shire website. Phase 1 complete with new website now live. Functionality to facilitate "Tim Fischer Way" touring route being developed is part of Phase 2 of the new website to be progressed in 2023/24.		
		Ordinary Council Meeting held 19 Ap	ril 2021		
63/21	GM	 Residential Development – Lockhart 2) That Council proceed with the subdivision of Lots 62 and 90 Prichard Place Lockhart as outlined in the report. 3) That the cost of subdividing the land be funded from the Infrastructure Reserve with the proceeds of any land sales to be returned to the Reserve. 	The development application for Lot 62 (westernmost lot) has been approved. The application for Lot 90 has now also been approved. Subdivision works to be scheduled. Quotes from contractors being sought. Sewer design currently being		
		the proceeds of any land sales to be	sought.		

This is page 11 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Minute No:	Officer to Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken
	Ordinary C	ouncil Meeting held 17 July 2023 – Councillo	r Questions & Statements
	DEES	Cr Marston: The Rock Bowling Club, Telegraph Pole	Works request created.
		Referred to a telegraph pole in Wilson Street, at the rear of The Rock Bowling Club, and drew attention to a hole in the ground adjacent which is covered by grass. Cr Marston requested that Council inspect and carry out remedial work as it is a hazard for pedestrians.	
	DCCS	Cr Day: International Volunteer Day, 5 December	To be combined with International Day for People with Disabilities,
Questions & Statements		Referred to the proposal to seek funding for an event to celebrate International Day for People with a Disability on 3 December and enquired could this be combined with an event to celebrate International Volunteer Day on 5 December?	3 December per Res. 30/23.
suc 8	DEES	Cr Walker: Town Entrance Sign, The Rock Mangoplah Road	The Director advised he is aware of the issue and remedial works have
Questic		Drew attention to this sign which requires some maintenance to straighten it up.	been programmed.
	DEES	Cr Rockliff: Lockhart Museum Entrance	Works request created.
		Referred to the area in front of Lockhart Museum and asked if any progress has been made regarding the problem of water building up and covering the ramp and ponding under and around the ramp.	
	DEES	Cr Verdon: Yerong Street – adj. to Branch Line	Works request created.
		Drew attention to potholes in Yerong Street, adjacent to the branch line, which require some attention.	
0	Ordinary C	ouncil Meeting held 19 June 2023 – Councillo	r Questions & Statements
lts	DEES	Cr Walker: Public Toilets, The Rock Showground	Concreting undertaken. Complete.
Questions & Statements		Asked for an update on progress of the installation of footpath around the amenities at The Rock Showground and asked if it could be completed prior to The Rock Show.	
suo	GM	Cr Rockliff: CCTV	Scope extended to include entrance
Questi		Requested a progress report on this project, given the problems which have occurred lately, and also asked if the funds currently set aside will be enough to complete the project.	to Lockhart Caravan park and The Rock Golf Club. Contractor engaged.

This is page 12 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Minute No:	Officer to Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken		
	Ordinary Council Meeting held 15 May 2023 – Councillor Questions & Statements				
	DCCS	Recreation Ground Lights Cr Jane Hunter: requested an update in relation to this project.	Costings received, contractor engaged. Work commenced.		
nents		Cr Gail Driscoll: asked is it possible that Council will not get the funding required and if so, can a Plan B be developed. Plan A is for the installation of LED lights. Can Plan B be making the towers safe and putting standard lights on them.	Lights at The Rock recreation ground should be installed on existing poles week of 21 August.		
Questions & Statements	DEES	Cr Sharp - South end of Lallarook Lane is a washout where water has been running over the road and not through the culvert and asked whether the culvert could be moved	Options being investigated for culvert location.		
Questio	DCCS	Cr Bob Mathews – Youth Officer: Advised that with the possibility of a sister city with Lockhart, Texas USA and the engagement through local schools, it is important that consideration be given to the appointment of a Youth Officer.	Report regarding the appointment of a Youth Officer to be tabled at a future meeting. See Staff Report 4.		
	DCCS	Cr Gail Driscoll – Works at the Recreation Ground: Advised that the key was given to the builder about a fortnight ago but there has been no progress since that time.	Works are progressing, approximately 90% complete.		
(Ordinary C	ouncil Meeting held 17 April 2023 – Councillo	r Questions & Statements		
	DEES Cr Marston: Yerong Creek Mittagong Road Culvert – Trees Encroaching		Works request created.		
ments		Referred to this culvert (near the Vincents Road intersection) where trees are encroaching on the road, and asked if Council could investigate trimming these trees.			
Questions & Statements	DEES	Cr Driscoll & Cr Walker: Street Sweeper Cr Driscoll asked if Council still has a streetsweeper. Cr Walker asked if funds put aside for street sweeping and maintenance, approximately \$40,000, are still available.	Council has purchased a street sweeper which will arrive shortly. Complete.		
Que	DEES	Cr Mathews: Property – Urana Lockhart Road Referred to an untidy property on Urana Lockhart Road and asked if anything can be done to screen the property from the road?	To be considered for tree planting program. Complete.		
Or	dinary Cou	incil Meeting held 13 February 2023 – Counci	llor Questions & Statements		
Questions & Statements S2DD		Cr Sharp: Old Building, Pleasant Hills Recreation Ground Referred to an old building, possibly change rooms dating back to the 1950's, which have become dangerous, with loose roofing sheets etc. Cr Sharp asked if it can be demolished.	Councillor Sharp is to liaise with "management committee" volunteers to demolish old building. At this stage will be scheduled when crops are in.		

This is page 13 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Minute No:	Officer to Action	Council Resolution	Action Taken		
Ord	Ordinary Council Meeting held 21 November 2022 – Councillor Questions & Statements				
Questions & Statements	DCCS	Cr Hunter: Tiled Wall outside The Rock Gym Referred to a problem with tiles on the external wall of The Rock Pool near the gym and asked what was being done to rectify the issue.	Builders have indicated the 300x100 yellow tiles are no longer available and are attempting to source alternative sized tiles. Builder still trying to source matching yellow tiles.		
Or	dinary Cou	uncil Meeting held 17 October 2022 – Council	lor Questions & Statements		
Questions & Statements	Step DEES/ DCCS Cr Verdon: Disability Access Across the Shire Audit will be undertaken wh resources permit. Scope of wo being discussed, with a que resulting from consultant. Stife Referred to Kurt Fearnley's speech at the recent Lockhart Community Bank branch birthday celebrations. The speech was a reminder that people with disabilities are entitled to access. Cr Verdon suggested an audit be carried out, with a view to improving access across the Shire, making sure all Council facilities are accessible to all residents. Audit will be undertaken wh resources permit. Scope of wo being discussed, with a que resources permit.				
(Ordinary C	ouncil Meeting held 18 July 2022 – Councillo	r Questions & Statements		
Questions & Statements	DCCS/ DEES	Cr Marston – The Rock Pony Club Advised that pony clubs are now required to load and unload horses from their floats in an enclosed area and requested some minor improvements to facilitate this.	- 5		
(Ordinary C	ouncil Meeting held 20 June 2022 – Councillo	or Questions & Statements		
Questions & Statements	DCCS	Cr Hunter – Yerong Creek Bowling Club Advised the Bowling Club are still awaiting receipt of an Occupation Certificate for the building.	Majority of work has been completed. Additional fire extinguishers being sourced by Club. When installed, final fire safety inspection will be scheduled.		

Correspondence Received

Date sent to Councillors	From	Subject
7 August 2023	Mayor, c/- Executive Assistant	Mayoral Update

Recommendation: That the Status Report and Correspondence Précis be received.

139/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Rockliff and Hunter that the Status Report and Correspondence Précis be received.

This is page 14 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

STAFF REPORTS

STRATEGIC DIRECTION A: A Connected and Resilient Community

1. REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE – LOCKHART LIONS CLUB

(GM: 23/8980)

Executive Summary

A request for financial assistance has been received from the Lockhart Lions Club which is tabled for Council's consideration.

Report

The following correspondence has been received from the Lockhart Lions Club requesting financial assistance towards the cost of freight for the Club's cardboard recycling service:

"On behalf of the Lions Club of Lockhart we sincerely thank Lockhart Shire Council for their continued support you have given the Lions Club over many years.

In regards to our freight cost which has increased over the past several years and we are very grateful that the Shire has been re-imbursing the Lions club \$3,000.00 per year, however the freight cost has increased over \$3,000.00 per year and we were hoping that the Shire may be able to increase the re-imbursement to \$4,000.00 per year, many thanks."

As noted in the Lions Club's letter, Council makes an annual contribution to the Club's freight costs. It is one of a number of recurring contributions made by Council and incorporated into the adoption of the annual budget. An amount of \$3,200 has been included in the 2023/24 budget for this purpose. If Council approves the request the amount will be increased by \$800 to \$4,000.

The Club's recycling activities recycle significant amounts of carboard from local businesses and is also an important fundraiser for the Club with the funds raised being used for community benefit.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

- A1: Build capacity, capability and partnerships to encourage sustainable community groups and clubs.
- A2: Support, or partner to provide, welcoming and well-maintained community spaces and facilities.

Legislative Policy & Planning Implications

Pursuant to Section 356 of the Local Government Act a council may, in accordance with a resolution of the council, contribute money or otherwise grant financial assistance to persons for the purpose of exercising its functions.

Budget & Financial Aspects

Council has allocated an amount of \$52,000 in the 2023/24 Budget for the consideration of requests for financial assistance pursuant to Section 356 of the Local Government Act.

Attachments

Nil.

Recommendation: That Council increases its annual contribution to the Lockhart Lions Club's freight costs from \$3,200 per year to \$4,000 per year.

140/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Marston and Day that Council increases its annual contribution to the Lockhart Lions Club's freight costs from \$3,200 per year to \$4,000 per year.

Having declared an interest in the following item, the General Manager and Director of Corporate & Community Services left the room at 5.40pm.

This is page 15 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

2. SPIRIT OF THE LAND LOCKHART – REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

(DEES: 23/9721))

Executive Summary

A request for financial assistance has been received from the Spirit of the Land Lockhart Inc. and is tabled for Council's consideration.

Background

In June 2018 Council resolved:

That Council continues to support the Spirit of the Land Festival as follows:

- a) \$11,000 in 2018/19 budget;
- b) \$10,000 in 2019/20 budget; and
- c) \$9,000 in 2020/21 budget.

Each of these amounts included an in-kind contribution of \$2,000 with a remaining cash contribution. Amounts were carried over due to the cancellation of two events due to COVID-19.

Report

The Spirit of the Land Lockhart Inc. has written to Council seeking continuation of financial support towards the annual Spirit of the Land Festival for a further three years. The committee has requested an annual cash contribution of \$7,000 and an increased in-kind contribution of \$5,000. The committee request is due to the increase in compliance and employee costs which has totalled \$5,000 - \$6,000 previous years.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

A1.3: Support community driven projects.

Legislative Policy & Planning Implications

Pursuant to Section 356 of the Local Government Act Council may, in accordance with a resolution of the Council, contribute money or otherwise grant financial assistance to persons for the purpose of exercising its functions.

Budget & Financial Aspects

Council has allocated an amount of \$52,000 in the 2023/24 budget to accommodate requests for financial assistance (noting \$13,300 of this amount has already been allocated). There is a sufficient amount remaining in the budget allocation to approve the request from the Spirit of the Land Festival Committee.

Attachments

• Letter dated 12 July 2023 from the Spirit of the Land Lockhart Inc.

Recommendation: That Council continues to support the Spirit of the Land Festival and that the contribution be funded from the 2023/24 budget allocation for Section 356 contributions as follows:

- a) \$12,000 in 2023/24;
- b) \$12,000 in 2024/25; and
- c) \$12,000 in 2025/26.
- 141/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Rockliff and Walker that Council continues to support the Spirit of the Land Festival and that the contribution be funded from the 2023/24 budget allocation for Section 356 contributions as follows:
 - a) \$12,000 in 2023/24;
 - b) \$12,000 in 2024/25; and
 - c) \$12,000 in 2025/26.

The General Manager and Director of Corporate and Community Services returned to the meeting at 5.42pm.

This is page 16 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

3. REVIEW OF SUBSIDIES TO RECREATION GROUND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

(DCCS 23/9712)

Executive Summary

Council has requested a report on the subsidies paid to all recreation ground management committees.

Report

At the June 2023 Council meeting in the resolution to adopt Council's Budget and Fees and Charges for 2023/24, it was recommended that:

"Consideration of the Yerong Creek Recreation Ground Management Committee's request for an increase in the annual subsidy, and one-off financial assistance, be deferred to the next Council meeting pending a review of subsidies paid to all recreation ground management committees."

There are five recreation ground management committees in the Shire that receive a subsidy from Council:

- Lockhart Recreation Ground
- Osborne Recreation Ground
- Pleasant Hills Recreation Reserve
- The Rock Recreation Ground
- Yerong Creek Recreation Ground

The attached table details the subsidy each management committee has received from 2013/14 to 2023/24.

The three "main" recreation grounds, Lockhart, Osborne and The Rock receive the largest subsidy amounts due mainly to their use all year round with both winter and summer sports usage.

Historically, Osborne received slightly less due to there being a dam and not having to pay for water all year round, this was equalised in 2021/22 with Osborne receiving the same subsidy as Lockhart and The Rock.

The significant increase in the Yerong Creek subsidy from 2012/14 to 2014/15 was due to the management committee taking on additional mowing outside of the recreation ground. This was mainly mowing at the Yerong Creek Cemetery and roadside mowing around the township and road from the township to the cemetery. Noting the subsidy was not reduced when the additional mowing was scaled back and limited to mowing around the township. This was due to work health and safety issues whereby Council took on the mowing of the cemetery and roads outside the township.

From 2018/19 all the management committees received a "real" increase in their subsidy, in that Council took on the payment of insurance for all the buildings and structures on the recreation grounds. Previously each management committee paid for the insurance premium for the buildings and structures under their care, control and management.

In 2020/21 Council increased the subsidy to management committees by 40%, initially, as a one off due to loss of income potential due to Covid. Council was able to fund this increase ongoing and the 40% increase has remained.

Overall Council has always been supportive of its management committees, as the "care, control and management" of these facilities by volunteers is significant and greatly appreciated by Council.

It should be noted the annual S355 subsidy is to assist each management committee with funding the operating costs to maintain their facilities. So, while Council provides its annual S355 subsidies, this does not preclude any management committee from requesting further financial support via Council's S356 budget allocation. These requests are mainly for larger one-off type costs that the annual subsidy is unable to fund. There have been many cases of management committees seeking such one-off funding requests over the years.

For the Yerong Creek Recreation Ground Management Committee's request to increase their annual subsidy, the Director of Corporate and Community Services has met with representatives of the management committee and indicated that Council would need to see data of actual costs before making an informed estimation of future costs. Also, the Director noted that their subsidy was not

This is page 17 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

reviewed and reduced when the management committee significantly scaled back on their "additional" mowing.

Their request to have the same subsidy as Lockhart, Osborne and The Rock would be difficult to justify on the basis there is only summer usage and a couple of uses over winter.

Over the next 12 months the management committee and Council with monitor the actual costs of electricity, water and other costs associated with the irrigating and the upkeep of the "new" cricket oval at the Yerong Creek Recreation Ground, and if deemed necessary a further report may come to Council to request an increase in their subsidy.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

- A1: Build capacity, capability and partnerships to encourage sustainable community groups and clubs.
- A1: Provide support and advice to community groups, clubs and volunteers.
- A1: Within financial means support and fund section 355 committees to manage and maintain council facilities.

Legislative Policy & Planning Implications

Committees are established by a resolution of Council pursuant to section 355 of the Local Government Act. The Council may dissolve any such Committee at any time.

Once a committee is established by a Council resolution, the Council may, pursuant to section 377 of the Local Government Act, delegate certain functions to that committee.

Budget & Financial Aspects

Council's annual budget makes provision for financial support to be provided to all recreation ground management committees established pursuant to Section 355 of the Local Government Act.

Attachments

• Table of subsidies paid to recreation ground management committees from 2013/14 to 2023/24.

Recommendation: That the information be noted.

142/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Day and Walker that the information be noted.

4. YOUTH OFFICER POSITION

DCCS 23/9723

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an update on the Youth Officer position.

<u>Report</u>

Council had a long history of sharing a Youth Officer with Greater Hume Shire Council. This arrangement has been terminated by Greater Hume Shire Council, as when their Youth Officer position became vacant, they undertook a review and deemed they no longer require a full time Youth Officer.

This has left Lockhart without any dedicated Youth Officer capacity. Council has enquired with Narrandera Shire Council if they would consider discussing a job share arrangement, however Narrandera have recently restructured their Youth Officer resources and do not have capacity at this stage.

The Youth Officer position/resource has been discussed at Manex, and moving forward Manex would be recommending that this position/resource be broadened to encompass more than just Youth activities. It would be recommended that the Youth Officer budget be used to create a Community Services Officer position, which could incorporate into this position such events as International Volunteers Day and International Day for People with Disabilities as examples.

This is page 18 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Council will develop a position description for a Community Services Officer with a report to a future Council meeting, which will include any budget implications. This position will likely be a part time position in the range of two to three days per week.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

A3: People of all ages, abilities, and backgrounds participate in community life.

– Support our children and young people.

Legislative Policy & Planning Implications

Nil.

Budget & Financial Aspects

The 2023/24 Budget provides a budget allocation of \$25,000 for a Youth Officer.

Attachments

Nil.

Recommendation: That the information be noted.

143/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Walker and Hunter that the information be noted.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION B: A Dynamic and Prosperous Economy

Nil.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION C: An Environment that is Respected and Protected

Nil.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION D: Infrastructure for the Long-Term Needs of the Community

5. ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES REPORT

(DEES)

Executive Summary

Monthly report on engineering and environmental services matters.

Background Information

Works

Council received \$2,426,764 under the Regional and Local Roads Program. The following roads have been included in the program for stabilisation and drainage work:

- MR59 Lockhart Collingullie Road
- MR59 Urana Lockhart Road
- MR370 Albury Road
- MR543 The Rock Collingullie Road
- MR543 Urana Street, The Rock
- Western Road
- The Rock Bullenbong Road
- Lockhart The Rock Road

This is page 19 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Council also received \$1,000,000 under the Local Government Recovery Grant Program. The following estimates have been provided to the OLG:

- Emily Street, The Rock \$215,000
- Cole Street, Yerong Creek \$80,000
- Green Street West \$385,000
- Waste Facility Access \$100,000
- Community Information Platform \$70,000
- Flood Detour Road \$150,000

<u>Storm Event</u>: Sections of unsealed roads which have been identified as damaged as a result of January 22 rain events are under way which include:

- Carrolls Lane, Ellis Lane, Fletts Lane, Gilmores Lane, Moffatts Lane,
- Erinvale Road, Fergusons Lane, Finlayson Lane, Tinamba Lane, Eulensteins Road, Albert Smiths Lane.

<u>Unsealed Roads</u>: Unsealed Road Maintenance of Shire gravel roads has been conducted on Seeligers Lane, Fergusons Lane, Neuhaus Lane, Finlayson Lane, Tootool Mittagong Road, Mortons Lane, Commera Wilson Lane, Jack Mitchells Lane, Bankvale Road, Cox Lane, Tinamba Lane.

<u>Maintenance Crews</u>: The bitumen crew have been kept busy with an increase of pavement failures due to the weather, routine maintenance has continued on our Local and Regional Roads. Maintenance crews have been attending to the back log of customer enquiries, gravel patching back lanes, Green Street heavy patching, installing culverts on Vincent Road and completion of installing Shire entry signs.

<u>Mittagong Yerong Creek Road</u>: Clearing works has commenced with the removal of several trees. All culverts delivered. Project extended to 2024 with work to commence September/October 2023.

Parks & Gardens

Avenue of Honour Extension, The Rock

The hard landscaping, including granite surfaces, steel garden bed edging, drip irrigation, walk bridge and dry creek bed have been completed. Planting of the garden beds will be done by Council staff as resources are available.

A concreter will be employed to install pram ramps to allow wheeled access to the new gardens and to change the existing driveway on the opposite side of Urana St into pedestrian access only.

Esplanade Upgrade, Pleasant Hills

Construction of the granite footpath has been completed. Quotes have been received for furniture, including benches, rubbish bins, picnic table and shelter. Design and quotes for the bird hide have been considered and agreed upon.

Stan Galvin Park, Yerong Creek - New Footpaths

Quotes have been received for the construction of the new paths.

109 Green St, Lockhart - Landscaping

Alterations to the landscape plan have received approval. Quotes for supplies have been sought and ordered. Installation will commence upon arrival of materials.

Weed Control

Weed control by mechanical and chemical methods is being conducted within urban areas as resources and conditions allow. Pesticides commonly used are Glyphosate and Dicamba. Signage will be placed at property entrance when spraying is in progress.

Trees

Annual under-pruning of Council's street trees and pruning of limbs protruding into urban lanes will be conducted throughout cooler months.

Lockhart Shires Street Tree Policy 2.44 states: 'Council is responsible for the planting and maintenance of street trees, including the selection of species, regular health, and safety checks, pruning, and removal and replanting requirements.

This is page 20 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Resident concerns regarding street trees, including species selection, maintenance and/or removal should be made in writing and addressed to the General Manager. Such issues will be resolved based on risk and available budget and resources.

Biosecurity

Control Program

Priority has been given to the control of Coolatai grass (*Hyparrhenia hirta*), Horehound (*Marrubium vulgare*) and Wild radish (*Raphanus raphanistrum*) on roadside reserves and council managed land. All known Spiny burrgrass (*Cenchrus spinifex*) sites, located within Red Guidepost areas, were sprayed to eliminate all growth.

LEP Review

Habitat Planning are progressing with the review of the Lockhart Local Environmental Plan 2012. The Scoping Report is being finalised and will then be submitted to the Department of Planning and Environment. The Scoping Report is a report indicating the background and strategic justification to the Department for the zoning/LEP amendments that were identified as part of the Lockhart Shire Local Housing and Employment Strategy.

DA/CDC No.	Development	Site of Development	Applicant	Value
DA53/23	Change of Use – Convert Church to a Dwelling House	1962 Western Rd, Urangeline	M Zhouand	\$150,370.00
DA61/23	Shed with bathroom & attached awning	11 King St, The Rock	J Nagengast	\$58,332.00
DA67/23	New Shed	46 Nicholas St, The Rock	S Harper	\$69,642.00
DA70/23	Subdivision for Agricultural purposes	2177 Osborne Yerong Creek Rd, Wrathall	L Ryan	\$5,000.00
DA01/24	New 4-bedroom Home & shed	16 Veneris St, Lockhart	SG Hounsell	\$944,000.00
DA02/24	Subdivision for Agricultural purposes	Osborne Yerong Creek Rd, Wrathall	L Ryan	\$5,000.00
DA04/24	New Carport with attached Shed	13 Scott St, The Rock	S Harper	\$32,000.00
			TOTAL:	\$1,264,344.00

Development Activity for the period ending 31 July 2023

Legislative Policy and Planning Implications

Development applications are processed under the provisions of the *Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979.*

Weed inspections and associated activities are carried out in accordance the *Biosecurity Act 2015* and associated regulations.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

- C2: Flora and fauna are protected across the Shire.
- D1: Our assets and infrastructure are well planned and managed to meet the needs of the community now and into the future.
- D2: Our planning and development controls work to attract new residents and investment.

Budget and Financial Aspects

Will be conducted within Council's allocated budget.

Attachment

Nil

Recommendation: That Council notes the information provided in the Engineering and Environmental Services report.

144/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Hunter and Walker that Council notes the information provided in the Engineering and Environmental Services report.

This is page 21 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

6. HIRE (DRY AND WET) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(DEES: 23/9302)

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is for Council to approve the list of hire companies for Miscellaneous Plant Hire (Dry Hire) and suitably qualified contractors for hire (wet) plant and equipment, for the period 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024.

Background Information

Every year Council invites submissions from companies for the hire of plant (dry) and suitably qualified contractors for hire (wet) plant and equipment.

A request for a schedule of rates was sent to selected companies for the dry hire of plant and an advertisement was placed in the local newspapers and on Council's website for the submission of wet hire plant and equipment. Council received responses from the following:

- 1. Orange Hire Leeton Earthmoving
- 2. Smallmon Bros Wagga Wagga Waste
- 3. Grid logistics St Marys Earthmoving
- 4. Aqua Assets Revesby Drains
- 5. Coates Hire Earthmoving
- 6. Summit Open Space Services Glendenning Earthmoving
- 7. Double Gully Services Lavington Slashers, mowers
- 8. Superior Crane Hire Wagga Wagga
- 9. Spicer Earthmoving Armidale
- 10. Rollers Pty Ltd Wagga Wagga
- 11. Boots Civil Earthmoving
- 12. R & L Holyoake Earthmoving
- 13. RW & LM Thomson Water Truck
- 14. Campo's Earthworks Earthmoving
- 15. Solomons Provisions (A & S Mulholland) Gravel trucks

Council is not bound to accept the lowest rates, or any rates submitted. The criteria used for assessing and selecting plant for dry hire include:

- a) Quoted hire rate
- b) Currency of insurances
- c) Compliance with WHS regulations
- d) Capacity to undertake the works
- e) Condition and age of plant and/or equipment
- f) Plant and operator performance/competencies
- g) Proximity and availability
- h) Service and support.
- b) Hire terms.
- c) Local preference.

The Council may undertake an ongoing evaluation of the hire companies' performance. The evaluation may be considered in the assessment of future requests for services of a similar nature. A copy of any such evaluation will be forwarded to the company. If the company disagrees with the evaluation, they may forward a request to Council's Manager Works for a review along with reasons why it should be reviewed. The Council's decision will be final. Council reserves the right to terminate agreements/contracts if the companies' performance has been identified as unsatisfactory and the

This is page 22 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

company fails to rectify this. Once hired, a daily equipment hire order including a safety check must be completed.

Appointment of a contractor will depend on the availability of plant and equipment required for a specific period as well as current insurances and Work, Health and Safety Systems in place.

Legislative Policy and Planning Implications

Section 55 of the *Local Government Act 1993* and the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 (Part 7 – Tendering) provides that works exceeding \$250,000 must be awarded by Council by way of public tender.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

D1: Our assets and infrastructure are well planned and managed to meet the needs of the community now and into the future.

Budget and Financial Aspects

Council's auditors advised that 'Management should review expenditure on an annual basis to identify goods or services where expenditure regularly exceeds \$250,000 annually and assess whether these should be subject to a competitive tender process.

Council may hire (wet & dry hire) plant on occasions when it is unable to provide plant from its own fleet. Although every effort will be made to minimise the cost of plant hire and keep the cumulative cost per hire company below \$250,000, circumstances may arise where the \$250,000 limit may be exceeded. Irrespective whether the expenditure is spread over several projects it is proposed that Council approves the contractors for the hire (wet and dry) of plant and equipment for the 2023-24 financial year to satisfy the recommendation by Council's auditors.

Attachment

Nil.

Recommendation: That Council approves the following companies for Miscellaneous Plant Hire (Dry Hire and Wet Hire) for the period 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024:

- 1. Orange Hire Leeton Earthmoving
- 2. Smallmon Bros Wagga Wagga Waste
- 3. Grid logistics St Marys Earthmoving
- 4. Aqua Assets Revesby Drains
- 5. Coates Hire Earthmoving
- 6. Summit Open Space Services Glendenning Earthmoving
- 7. Double Gully Services Lavington Slashers, mowers
- 8. Superior Crane Hire Wagga Wagga
- 9. Spicer Earthmoving Armidale
- 10. Rollers Pty Ltd Wagga Wagga
- 11. Boots Civil Earthmoving
- 12. R & L Holyoake Earthmoving
- 13. RW & LM Thomson Water Truck
- 14. Campo's Earthworks Earthmoving
- 15. Solomons Provisions (A & S Mulholland) Gravel trucks

This is page 23 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

145/23	RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Walker and Marston that Council approves the following companies for Miscellaneous Plant Hire (Dry Hire and Wet Hire) for the period 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024:					
	1.	Orange Hire Leeton – Earthmoving				
	2.	Smallmon Bros Wagga Wagga – Waste				
	3.	Grid logistics St Marys – Earthmoving				
	4.	Aqua Assets Revesby – Drains				
	5.	Coates Hire – Earthmoving				
	6.	Summit Open Space Services Glendenning – Earthmoving				
	7.	Double Gully Services Lavington – Slashers, mowers				
	8.	Superior Crane Hire Wagga Wagga				
	9.	Spicer Earthmoving Armidale				
	10.	Rollers Pty Ltd Wagga Wagga				
	11.	Boots Civil – Earthmoving				
	12.	R & L Holyoake - Earthmoving				
	13.	RW & LM Thomson – Water Truck				
	14.	Campo's Earthworks - Earthmoving				
	15.	Solomons Provisions (A & S Mulholland) – Gravel trucks				

7. ROAD UPGRADE PROGRAM

(DEES: 23/9554)

Executive Summary

The review of the Lockhart Shire Council road classification was completed and endorsed by Council in March 2023. The proposed method of delivery is presented for information.

Background Information

Council received several requests to reclassify roads with a view to either upgrade the road from a gravel road to a sealed road or to a higher classification of gravel road receiving a higher service level. Justification for reclassification of roads is difficult as Council's Policy 2.17 *Local Roads Classification & Maintenance* offers a local road classification based on asset typology e.g., whether a road is sealed or unsealed, rather than its function.

A review of the Lockhart Shire Council road classification was undertaken to identify changes to the network to ensure that the network is meeting the needs of the community and industry, within the available levels of funding.

At the March 2022 Council meeting council resolved to:

- 1. Establish a Road Classification Working Group to oversee a review of road classifications in the Shire; and
- 2. Nominate the following Councillors to participate in the Working Group
 - A Ward Cr Rockliff
 - B Ward Cr Sharp
 - C Ward Cr Verdon

The Working Group met and agreed to proposed changes which was distributed to all councillors for comment.

Following consultation and subsequent amendments the following was adopted at the March 2023 meeting:

This is page 24 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

NAME	C1	C2	EF
Adams Lane	0	0	0
Albert Smiths Lane		3.2	-3.2
Aumanns Lane		1.8	-1.8
Bankvale Road	-5.2	5.2	
Bulloc Hill Road		1.7	-1.7
Carrolls Lane		2.4	-2.4
Clancys Lane		0.5	-0.5
Fargunyah Lane		3.2	-3.2
Frank Westblades Lane	8.2	-8.2	
Geddes Lane		1	-1
Gilmours Lane		1.2	-1.2
Illetts Lane		2.6	-2.6
Janetskes Lane		3.8	-3.8
Krauses Lane		2.3	-2.3
McRories Lane	-4.1	4.1	
Mittagong Yerong Creek	0	0	0
Napier Road	-5.2	5.2	
Poverty Lane		2.7	-2.7
Rawson Park Road	-0.6	0.6	
Vincents Road	8.7	-8.7	
Wetmores Lane	0	0	0
TOTAL	1.8	24.6	-26.4

The estimated costs to enable the adopted improvements to the road classification is \$1,640,000. In order to achieve this improvement in service levels it is proposed to roll out the upgrades over several financial years as aligned with the current gravel re-sheet program. An increase in Council's unsealed roads budget will be required. Furthermore, it is proposed to delay the changes until such time as the Flood Recovery Grant money is spent by Council. The proposed program is presented below:

Road	Year
Albert Smiths Lane	23/24
Fargunyah Lane	23/24
Aumanns Lane	24/25
Bulloc Hill Road	24/25
Clancys Lane	24/25
Geddes Lane	24/25
Gilmours Lane	24/25
Carrolls Lane	25/26
Poverty Lane	25/26
Seeligers Lane	26/27
lletts Lane	27/28

This is page 25 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Road	Year
Janetskes Lane	27/28
Frank Westblades Lane	28/29
Vincents Road	29/30

Based on the above an increase of \$150,000 to Council's road maintenance budget is sought.

Legislative Policy and Planning Implications

Nil.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

D1: Our assets and infrastructure are well planned and managed to meet the needs of the community now and into the future.

Budget and Financial Aspects

Increase Council's annual road maintenance budget by \$150,000.

Attachment

Nil.

Recommendation: That Council:

- a) notes the information in the report; and
- b) an increase of \$150,000 to the annual road maintenance budget be incorporated into the first quarterly budget review for the 2023/24 year.

146/23	RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Rockliff and Walker that Council:		
	a)	notes the information in the report; and	
	b)	an increase of \$150,000 to the annual road maintenance budget be incorporated into the first quarterly budget review for the 2023/24 year.	
	c)	investigates the possibility of upgrading the EF section of Commera Wilson Lane.	

This is page 26 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION E: Strong Leadership and Governance

8. INVESTMENT AND BANK BALANCES REPORT – JULY 2023

(DCCS: 23/9189)

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the funds that have been invested and bank account balances.

Report

It is required under Clause 212 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 and Section 625 of the Local Government Act 1993 to provide the Council with a written report each month detailing all money that Council has invested.

Cash at Bank

Opening Combined Cashbook Balance Add: Total Receipts				242,682.26
rad. Total Neverpto		Rates	56,380.15	
		Debtors	34,278.33	
		Miscellaneous	89,087.49	
		Interest	24,942.50	
		Transport for NSW - JULP	30,982.50	
		June BAS Refund	44,576.00	
		Round 3 Sustainability Support Grant 23/24	14,850.00	
		Transport for NSW - RRRP Grant	13,479.39	
		SSWP204 LSC IWCM Milestone 2	60,088.50	
		Return of Investments	1,500,000.00	
		SCCF3-0789 Milestone 2	17,000.00	
				1,885,664.86
Less: Total Payments				1,486,809.03
	New Investments	0	-	4,700,000.00
Closing Combined Cashbook Balance			-	641,538.09
Closing Bank Statement Balance		Bendigo Bank		602,085.95
		Macquarie Bank		52,448.03
		Bendigo Bank-Prichard Trust	-	31,785.43
			_	686,319.41
Add: Outstanding Deposits			_	5,254.68
				691,574.09
Less: Outstanding Cheques			-	50,036.00
Closing Combined Cashbook Balance			=	641,538.09
	Interest Rate per		Amount	
Investments:	Annum		Invested	% of Total
Bank of Queensland	5.05		700,000.00	5.22
Bendigo Bank	4.90		1,000,000.00	7.45
Bendigo Bank	4.55		500,000.00	3.73
Bendigo Bank	4.55		500,000.00	3.73
Bendigo Bank Bondigo Bank	4.85 4.90		250,000.00 400,000.00	1.86 2.98
Bendigo Bank Bendigo Bank	4.90 on call		400,000.00 66,072.20	0.49
Commonwealth Bank	4.83		1,000,000.00	7.45
Commonwealth Bank	4.53		500,000.00	3.73
Commonwealth Bank	4.87		500,000.00	3.73
Commonwealth Bank	4.49		500,000.00	3.73
Commonwealth Bank	4.76		1,000,000.00	7.45
MB	5.05		500,000.00	3.73
MACQUARIE BANK	4.63		500,000.00	3.73
MACQUARIE BANK	4.63		500,000.00	3.73
MACQUARIE BANK	4.72		500,000.00	3.73
MACQUARIE BANK	4.72		500,000.00	3.73
MACQUARIE BANK	4.94		500,000.00	3.73
National Australia Bank	5.09		500,000.00	3.73
National Australia Bank	5.09		1,000,000.00	7.45
National Australia Bank	4.80		500,000.00	3.73
National Australia Bank	4.55		500,000.00	3.73
National Australia Bank	4.80		500,000.00	3.73
National Australia Bank	4.90		500,000.00	3.73
			13,416,072.20	100.00
			.,	AMOUNT
		1490-3000-0000		(1,860,029.01)
Combined Sewerage		8490-3000-0000		2,469,781.67
Trust Fund		9991-3000-0000	_	31,785.43
			641,538.09	641,538.09
		TOTAL FUNDS HELD ARE:	14,057,610.29	

This is page 27 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

- E1 Council is strong, sustainable and able to stand alone.
- E1 Plan for the long-term sustainability of the Shire.
- E1 Meet all governance and regulatory requirements in the conduct of Council operations.

Legislative Policy and Planning Implications

- Local Government Act 1993 Section 625 Investments.
- Local Government (General) Regulation Clause 212.

Budget and Financial Aspects

Council's 2023/24 Operational Budget has forecast a total of \$401,000 income from interest on investments for General Fund & Sewer Fund combined. For the month of July 2023 the end of month balance of funds invested has been \$13.4 million and the average return on invested funds has been 4.79%. On these year to date figures, Council's budgeted income on investments will be exceeded for the General Fund and Sewer Fund. An adjustment will be considered at the 1st Quarterly Budget Review.

Responsible Accounting Officer Statement

I, Craig Fletcher, hereby certify that all investments listed in this report have been made in accordance with Section 625 of the Local Government Act 1993, Clause 212 of Local Government (General) Regulation and Council's Investment Policy. The Internal and External Reserve amounts and Unrestricted Funds are estimate valued only, they are subject to change and review in part with the audit of Council's Financial Statements and each Quarterly Budget Review.

Recommendation:

- a) That the July 2023 Investment and Bank Balances Report be received and noted.
- b) That the Responsible Accounting Officer Statement be noted, and the report be adopted.

147/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Day and Rockliff that:

- a) the July 2023 Investment and Bank Balances Report be received and noted.
- b) the Responsible Accounting Officer Statement be noted, and the report be adopted.

9. GUIDELINES FOR AUDIT, RISK AND IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEES

(GM: 23/8585)

Executive Summary

Lockhart Shire Council is a member of an Internal Audit Alliance together with five other councils. The Alliance's arrangements are being reviewed in order to transition to the new Guidelines for Audit Risk and improvement Committees (ARICs) issued by the Office of Local Government.

<u>Report</u>

As previously reported to Council, amendments inserted into the Local Government Act in recent years require councils to appoint an Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee (ARIC).

The OLG has issued *Guidelines for Risk Management and Internal Audit for Local Councils in NSW* to guide the operations of ARICs and to require councils to have a risk management framework and internal audit function to support and inform their operations.

In December 2022 advice was received from OLG that the *Guidelines for Risk Management and Internal Audit for Local Government in NSW* (the Guidelines) have been approved. However, OLG has been advised that the Guidelines will not come into force until amendments to the Local Government (General) Regulation 2021 giving statutory force to elements of the Guidelines are made.

OLG has issued the approved Guidelines in draft form pending the supporting Regulation amendments being made so that councils can start to implement them.

This is page 28 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Councils must comply with the Guidelines from **1 July 2024**. Set out below are some of the requirements that Council's ARIC will have to comply with by that date.

- 1. 'Each council is required to appoint an audit, risk and improvement committee that comprises of an independent chair and at least two independent members that meet the independence and eligibility criteria in these Guidelines.
- 2. Councils may appoint one councillor as a non-voting member of its audit risk and improvement committee. Councillors appointed as a non-voting member of an audit, risk and improvement committee must satisfy the eligibility criteria for councillor members of committees specified in these Guidelines.
- 3. The chair and independent voting committee members must not:
 - a) currently be a councillor of any NSW council.
 - b) be a non-voting representative of the board of the joint organisation.
 - c) be a candidate at the last election of the council.
 - d) be a person who has held office in the council during its previous term.
 - e) be currently employed by the council or joint organisation, or been employed during the last 12 months.
 - f) conduct audits of the council on behalf of the Audit Office of NSW.
 - g) have a close personal or business relationship with a councillor or a person who has a senior role in the council that may lead to a real or perceived conflict of interest.
 - currently, or within the last three years, provided any material goods or services (including consultancy, legal, internal audit and advisory services) to the council which directly affect subjects or issues considered by the audit, risk and improvement committee.
 - be (or have a close family member who is) a substantial shareholder, owner, officer or employee of a company that has a material business, contractual relationship, direct financial interest or material indirect financial interest with the council or a related entity which could be considered a real or perceived conflict of interest, or
 - *j)* currently or have previously acted as an advocate of a material interest on behalf of the council or a related entity which could be considered a real or perceived conflict of interest.
- 4. Councils' general managers must appoint a member of staff of the council to direct and coordinate internal audit activities for the council.
- 5. The member of staff of a council appointed to direct and coordinate internal audit activities is not to be subject to direction in the performance of internal audit activities by anyone other than the audit, risk and improvement committee.
- 6. The fees a council pays to the chair and independent members of its audit, risk and improvement committee are to be agreed between the council and the chair or member and reflect the time, commitment and responsibility involved in serving on the committee.
- 7. Councils are obliged under the Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992 to make compulsory superannuation guarantee contributions on behalf of audit, risk and improvement committee chairs and independent members where they are remunerated.

The Internal Audit Alliance has been a cost-effective way of sharing the services of a contracted internal auditor and having general managers and finance staff sit as independent members of another council's ARIC. For example, the General Manager and Director Corporate and Community Services are the chair and independent member respectively of Temora Shire Council's ARIC whilst the Junee Shire Council's General Manager and Director Corporate and Community Services are the chair member respectively of Lockhart Shire Council's ARIC.

This arrangement will not be compliant with the new Guidelines. Accordingly, the Internal Audit Alliance Councils have been meeting to discuss transitioning to the new requirements. Subject to endorsement by the respective member councils a consensus has been reached that:

This is page 29 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

- a) Member councils continue the collaborative arrangement of the Internal Audit Alliance.
- b) A separate ARIC continue to be maintained by each member council as opposed to establishing a single shared ARIC for all six councils.
- c) All councils appoint the same independent chairperson that meets the eligibility criteria outlined in 3) above following an expression of interest process.
- d) A panel comprising persons that meet the eligibility criteria outlined in 3) above be established following an expression of interest process from which member councils can appoint two independent ARIC members.
- e) Member councils share the cost of employing an Internal Audit Coordinator in accordance with 4) above.
- f) Member councils continue to share the cost of a contracted internal auditor where possible.

With respect to the proposal to share the cost of employing an Internal Audit Coordinator, consideration was given to this position being employed through REROC. However, as the Guidelines require this position to be an employee of a council it is intended that one of the member councils act as the host employer whilst all member councils share the cost.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

- E1: Advocate and prepare for the long-term sustainability of our Shire.
- E1: Continue to enhance sound financial management policies and practices.
- E1: Meet all governance and regulatory requirements in the conduct of Council operations.
- E1: Minimise Council's exposure to risk and promote a strong risk management culture within Council.

Legislative Policy & Planning Implications

Council has complied with the primary obligation under the Local Government Act to establish an ARIC. However, the current composition of the ARIC does not comply with the new eligibility requirements for ARIC chairs and independent members. Council will need to transition its ARIC in terms of its composition and so as to comply with the eligibility requirements by July 2024.

Budget & Financial Aspects

An allocation has been included made in the 2023/24 Operational Plan Budget which covers the cost of a contracted internal auditor whose services are shared with other member councils which Council has collaborated with to form an Internal Audit Alliance.

Whilst the updated eligibility requirements will not impact on the 2023/24 budget, they will result in additional governance costs to Council from 2024/25.

Attachments

The approved Guidelines are available on OLG's website at https://www.olg.nsw.gov.au/councils/governance/risk-management-audit-and-internal-controls/risk-management-audit-framework-for-local-councils-in-nsw/

Recommendation: That Council continue to participate in the Internal Audit Alliance and endorse the following arrangements for the purpose of transitioning the Alliance to the requirements outlined in the *Guidelines for Risk Management and Internal Audit for Local Councils in NSW* issued by OLG:

- 1. A separate ARIC continue to be maintained by each member council as opposed to establishing a single shared ARIC for all six councils.
- 2. Member councils appoint the same independent chairperson that meets the eligibility criteria following an expression of interest process.
- 3. A panel comprising persons that meet the eligibility criteria be established following an expression of interest process from which member councils can appoint two independent ARIC members.
- 4. Member councils share the cost of employing an Internal Audit Coordinator.
- 5. Member councils continue to share the cost of a contracted internal auditor where possible.

This is page 30 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

148/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Rockliff and Walker that Council continue to participate in the Internal Audit Alliance and endorse the following arrangements for the purpose of transitioning the Alliance to the requirements outlined in the *Guidelines for Risk Management and Internal Audit for Local Councils in NSW* issued by OLG:

- A separate ARIC continue to be maintained by each member council as opposed to establishing a single shared ARIC for all six councils.
- 2. Member councils appoint the same independent chairperson that meets the eligibility criteria following an expression of interest process.
- 3. A panel comprising persons that meet the eligibility criteria be established following an expression of interest process from which member councils can appoint two independent ARIC members.
- 4. Member councils share the cost of employing an Internal Audit Coordinator.
- 5. Member councils continue to share the cost of a contracted internal auditor where possible.

10. ELECTION OF MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR

(GM: 23/8997)

Executive Summary

Councils that elect their mayors are required under section 290(1)(b) of the *Local Government Act 1993* (the Act) to hold mid-term mayoral elections in September 2023. Mayors elected in September 2023 will hold their office until council elections are held on 14 September 2024.

Report

Mayoral elections must be conducted in accordance with Schedule 7 of the *Local Government (General) Regulation 2021*. Schedule 7 prescribes three methods of election of mayors:

- 1) open ballot (e.g. a show of hands)
- 2) ordinary ballot, or
- 3) preferential ballot.

"Ordinary ballot" and "preferential ballot" referred to above are secret ballots. "Open voting" means voting by a show of hands.

If more than one councillor is nominated, the council is to resolve whether the election is to proceed by preferential ballot, by ordinary ballot or by open voting.

The election is to be held at the council meeting at which the council resolves on the method of voting.

Councillors can participate in mayoral elections using an open ballot by audio visual link but not where the other two methods of election are used.

Ordinary and preferential ballots are secret ballots and councillors will need to attend the meeting in person to vote if the mayoral election is held using either of these methods.

A councillor cannot participate in a meeting of the council or of a committee of the council unless personally present at the meeting, unless permitted to attend the meeting by audio-visual link under this code.

It is noted that Council has granted leave of absence for one councillor for the September 2023 Council meeting. However, to date there have not been any requests from Councillors to participate in the September 2023 Council meeting by audio visual link.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

E1: Meet all governance and regulatory requirements in the conduct of Council operations.

Legislative Policy & Planning Implications

The Council's Code of Meeting Practice includes the following provisions regarding participation in meetings by audio visual link:

This is page 31 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

- *"5.2 A councillor cannot participate in a meeting of the council or of a committee of the council unless personally present at the meeting, unless permitted to attend the meeting by audio-visual link under this code.*
- 5.18 Councillors may attend and participate in meetings of the council and committees of the council by audio-visual link with the approval of the council or the relevant committee.
- 5.22 A councillor who has requested approval to attend a meeting of the council or a committee of the council by audio-visual link may participate in the meeting by audio-visual link until the council or committee determines whether to approve their request and is to be taken as present at the meeting. The councillor may participate in a decision in relation to their request to attend the meeting by audio-visual link.
- 5.23 A decision whether to approve a request by a councillor to attend a meeting of the council or a committee of the council by audio-visual link must be made by a resolution of the council or the committee concerned."

Budget & Financial Aspects

The allowance payable to the Mayor has previously been determined by Council and provided for in the 2023/24 Operational Plan Budget.

Attachments

Nil.

Recommendation: That the information be noted.

149/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Marston and Walker that the information be noted.

11. DRAFT MODEL CONTAMINATED LAND POLICY

(MP&B: 23/9617)

Executive Summary

This report presents the Draft Model Contaminated Land Policy to Council and seeks Council's endorsement for the public exhibition of the draft Policy. It is proposed that this model policy will replace the current Policy 2.47 Contaminated Land Management.

Report

The draft Model Policy outlines Council's commitment regarding managing contaminated land in its local government area. This commitment continues to be anchored in the 'contaminated land planning guidelines' (i.e. the State Environmental Planning Policy 55 (SEPP55) Planning Guidelines – Remediation of Land (1998)).

The draft Model Policy is a copy of the current RAMROC-REROC Model Contaminated Policy that Council adopted in 2017. It also includes amendments identified in consultation with both Council and with the project steering committee.

These amendments pertain to:

- Incorporating changes in the regulatory landscape related to contaminated land,
- Addressing feedback received from Council on their experiences and learnings in implementing the current RAMROC-REROC Model Contaminated Land Policy, and
- Council's request for additional 'best practice resources'.

Contaminated Land Framework

The contaminated land framework comprises three elements:

- 1. (Draft) Model Contaminated Land Policy (2023),
- 2. Council guidance on Implementing the Contaminated Land Policy, and
- 3. Best practice resources.

This is page 32 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

This framework was developed by RAMJO and REROC in collaboration with Far North-West Joint Organisation and Dubbo Regional Council. This collaboration sought to establish a 'regional' framework for managing contaminated land in Council business processes.

(Draft) Model Contaminated Land Policy (2023)

The objectives of the draft Model Policy are unchanged, solely on the basis that the Resilience and Hazards SEPP (2021) incorporated an unchanged SEPP55 Planning Guidelines – Remediation of Land (1998).

However, the Department of Planning and Environment (DPE) did release a draft 'contaminated land planning guidelines' (2018) that outlined proposed amendments to the SEPP55 Planning Guidelines. In consultation with our project steering committee, a number of these amendments have been incorporated in the draft Model Policy including:

- Adding 'Council depots' to the table in Appendix 1 on potential activities that may give rise to site contamination, and
- The 'Initial Evaluation' checklist.

The draft Model Policy has been amended to reflect updates in the regulatory landscape relevant to contaminated land, including:

- The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act (EP&A Act) in relation to the 'planning proposal' process (i.e. Local Planning Direction 4.4),
- The Complying Development guidelines regarding development on land previously subject to management orders under the Contaminated Land Management Act,
- The Code SEPP in relation to procedures for 'unexpected finds', and
- The underground petroleum storage systems (UPSS) Regulation 2019 in relation to 'appropriate regulatory authority' responsibilities related to the design, installation, operation, maintenance and decommissioning of underground petroleum storage systems.

Feedback received from Council on their experiences and learnings in using the current Model Policy resulted in amendments to the draft Model Policy. This included:

- An update of the risk-based approach for the assessment of site contamination,
- Extending the risk-based approach to include UPSS, and
- To expand the coverage of the 'best practice resources'.

The new 'UPSS' section of the draft Model Policy was developed in consultation with Council and the project steering committee. This new section outlines:

- A procedure to consider the design, installation, operation, maintenance and decommissioning of UPSS in a development assessment and consent process, and
- An 'optional' risk-based approach for Council to manage its 'appropriate regulatory authority' (ARA) responsibilities under the UPSS Regulation 2019 regarding the operation and maintenance of UPSS.

The development assessment and consent clauses were developed with guidance and input from Council. These were tested at the training workshops delivered in May and June 2023 with Council providing constructive feedback that resulted in amendments to this clause.

The 'optional' risk-based approach for Council to manage its ARA responsibilities pertains specifically to the monitoring of UPSS sites. Council could monitor these sites to confirm they maintain compliance with Development Consent and/or the UPSS Regulation 2019. The relevant clauses of the draft Model Policy do not commit Council to a UPSS inspection and monitoring requirement. Rather these clauses outline a risk-based approach that Council may elect to implement, and with a view to make informed decisions regarding a UPSS inspection program. This is consistent with advice received from Council in our consultations and in the abovementioned training workshops.

This 'optional' risk-based approach has been supplemented with new 'best practice resources' including guidance documents and tools. Some of these have already been used by Council to assess the risk of identified UPSS sites in their local government area.

This is page 33 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Implications on Council

The draft Model Policy does not present any new implications on Council regarding the management of contaminated land. Contaminated land clauses remain unchanged with exception to those related to changes in the regulatory landscape that Council has already implemented.

This includes Local Planning Direction 4.4 where a 'preliminary site investigation' report is required to be attached to a planning proposal when and only when specific conditions are triggered.

The draft Model Policy includes a new section on UPSS. This section outlines requirements of an 'appropriate regulatory authority' under the UPSS Regulation 2019. These requirements are not new and have been applied by Council in development assessment and consent processes for new or significantly modified UPSS.

The new UPSS section also outlines an 'optional' risk-based approach for Council to manage the risk associated with the ongoing operation and maintenance of UPSS in their local government area. Council was provided with training and guidance on this approach, as well as data on UPSS sites in their local government area.

Council is to be provided with 'best practice resources' that relate UPSS requirements to specific Council business processes. These resources will guide and inform Council decision-making processes on the extent to which (if at all) UPSS are managed by Council in their local government area.

Conclusion

The draft Model Contaminated Land Policy (2023) presents no significant changes to how contaminated land is managed by Council in their local government area. It remains anchored in the SEPP55 Planning Guidelines – Remediation of Land (1998), as required by Schedule 6 of the EP&A Act (vis-à-vis the 'good faith' defence).

The draft Model Policy has been amended to include UPSS. It presents an 'optional' risk-based approach to guide Council decision-making on the ongoing monitoring of UPSS sites.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

E1: Meet all governance and regulatory requirements in the conduct of Council operations.

E1: Minimise Council's exposure to risk and promote a strong risk management culture within Council.

Legislative Policy & Planning Implications

A process for the identification, development and review of appropriate policies and procedures facilitates an effective governance and control environment.

Budget & Financial Aspects

Nil.

Attachments

• Draft Model Contaminated Land Policy distributed under separate cover.

Recommendation: that Council places the draft Model Contaminated Land Policy on public exhibition for a period of 28 days.

150/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Hunter and Day that Council places the draft Model Contaminated Land Policy on public exhibition for a period of 28 days.

12. POLICY REVIEWS

(GM: 23/7887)

Executive Summary

A number of policies are scheduled for review in accordance with the three-year cycle referred to in Policy No. 1.0 Policies – Procedure for Consideration and Adoption.

This is page 34 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Report

At its meeting held on 20 March 2023, Council endorsed "Policy No. 1.0 Policies – Procedure for Consideration and Adoption" which set out a process for the systematic review of Council policies and the development of new policies.

Policy 1.0 Policies – Procedure for Consideration and Adoption provides that:

In order to ensure that policies remain relevant a program of ongoing review of policies not later than every three years will be developed and maintained.

Individual policies will be reviewed and amended in advance of the scheduled review date when circumstances warrant. This may be prompted by factors such as a change in legislation, a change in government policy or as a result of a need identified by the Council, management and staff or internal and external audit activities.

The following policies are presented for review in accordance Policy No. 1.0:

- 1) Policy 2.10 Authority to Undertake Enforcement Actions
- 2) Policy 2.18 Private Water Pipes Under Roadways
- 3) Policy 2.26 Signs as Remote Supervision
- 4) Policy 2.27 Constructed Footpath Risk Management
- 5) Policy 2.29 Equipment Hire for Emergency Situations
- 6) Policy 2.30 Dust Suppression

Copies of the above Polices are attached.

Policy 2.10 Authority to Undertake Enforcement Actions has been amended in order to update references to position titles and relevant legislation e.g. the Impounding Act has been repealed and replaced by the Public Spaces (Unattended Property) *Act* 2021.

No significant changes have been made to the remaining policies however it is recommended that Policy 2.29 Equipment Hire for Emergency Situations be rescinded. The matters dealt with in the policy are covered by instruments of delegation and legislative provisions and it is considered unnecessary to have a separate policy in relation to the matter.

Integrated Planning and Reporting Reference

- E1: Meet all governance and regulatory requirements in the conduct of Council operations.
- E1: Minimise Council's exposure to risk and promote a strong risk management culture within Council.

Legislative Policy & Planning Implications

A process for the identification, development and review of appropriate policies and procedures facilitates an effective governance and control environment.

Budget & Financial Aspects

Nil.

Attachments

- 1) Policy 2.10 Authority to Undertake Enforcement Actions
- 2) Policy 2.18 Private Water Pipes Under Roadways
- 3) Policy 2.26 Signs as Remote Supervision
- 4) Policy 2.27 Constructed Footpath Risk Management
- 5) Policy 2.29 Equipment Hire for Emergency Situations
- 6) Policy 2.30 Dust Suppression

Recommendation:

- 1. That the following Policies, as presented, be adopted:
 - a) Policy 2.10 Authority to Undertake Enforcement Actions
 - b) Policy 2.18 Private Water Pipes Under Roadways

This is page 35 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

- c) Policy 2.26 Signs as Remote Supervision
- d) Policy 2.27 Constructed Footpath Risk Management
- e) Policy 2.30 Dust Suppression
- 2. That Policy 2.29 Equipment Hire for Emergency Situations be rescinded.

151/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Walker and Hunter:

- 1. That the following Policies, as presented, be adopted:
 - a) Policy 2.10 Authority to Undertake Enforcement Actions
 - b) Policy 2.18 Private Water Pipes Under Roadways
 - c) Policy 2.26 Signs as Remote Supervision
 - d) Policy 2.27 Constructed Footpath Risk Management
 - e) Policy 2.30 Dust Suppression
- 2. That Policy 2.29 Equipment Hire for Emergency Situations be rescinded.

QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS

Cr Driscoll

Nil.

Cr Marston

i) **Vincents Road:** Cr Marston referred to grading being undertaken at the southern end of Vincents Road and asked if a culvert is going to be installed at that end to assist with drainage issues?

Response – Director of Engineering & Environmental Services

The Director advised there were no plans currently for a culvert but the matter has been raised previously. The Director advised he will investigate.

ii) **Defibrillator Availability:** Cr Marston mentioned a recent tragedy and asked if it might be possible to move the automatic defibrillator from inside the swimming pool complex to outside the gate to make it available at any hour.

Response – General Manager

The General Manager advised both the cost and logistics of this can be investigated.

iii) **Toilets, The Rock Recreation Ground:** Cr Marston referred to the public toilets at The Rock Recreation Ground which require heavy cleaning as they are unhygienic at the moment with mould growing in places.

Response – Director of Engineering & Environmental Services

The Director advised he will organise a pressure clean.

Back Lanes – The Rock: Cr Marston asked if there was a similar maintenance program for the urban back lanes as there is for more major roads.

Response - Director of Engineering & Environmental Services

The Director advised he is working towards having regular inspections of footpaths, kerb and gutter, and back lanes, in order to create a program of regular maintenance. At the moment the priorities have been main roads with storm damage etc.

Spirit of the Land – Purchase of Artworks: Cr Marston enquired on behalf of The Rock RSL Subbranch if a military-themed sculpture becomes available at the Spirit of the Land Festival could it be considered for the Avenue of Honour at The Rock?

Response – General Manager

The General Manager advised Council could consider purchasing any sculpture. He further advised that those Spirit of the Land sculptures purchased so far have been purchased by the Bendigo Bank.

This is page 36 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

<u>Cr Day</u>

i) **Food Safety Inspections:** Cr Day asked what acknowledgement is given to local businesses of good food safety practice, and to promote confidence for consumers? Could Council consider the "Scores on Doors" programs?

Response – Manager Planning & Environment

The Manager of Planning & Environment advised that businesses are provided with copies of inspection reports. No certificate is issued to businesses. The Manager further advised Council could investigate the "Scores on Doors" program.

Cr Hunter

i) **Plunkett Street, Yerong Creek:** Cr Hunter referred to the main street of Yerong Creek and asked if it was included in the current repair/maintenance program and, if so, where in the timeline it was placed.

Response – Director of Engineering & Environmental Services

The Director of Engineering & Environmental Services advised that Plunkett Street is included in the current program and would provide more information regarding its position.

ii) **Project Manager Position:** Cr Hunter asked if the position currently advertised is a new position.

Response – Director of Engineering & Environmental Services

The Director advised this position was to replace the outgoing Project Officer.

Cr Walker

i) **Slys Lane:** Cr Walker advised he has received a request from the users of this road for the Earth Formed section to be formed up as it is badly washed away. The users have offered to maintain it once it is formed.

Response – Director of Engineering & Environmental Services

The Director advised he would take the question on notice and provide a response.

ii) Better Energy Solar Project: Cr Walker asked for an update on this project.

Response – General Manager

The General Manager advised a milestone had been achieved recently, with AEMO issuing a Sec 5.3.4A letter in the first week of August, which is an important advancement. The proponent is still negotiating the grid connection agreement with Essential Energy.

Cr Rockliff

Nil.

Cr Verdon

i) **Laneway Maintenance:** Cr Verdon referred to the laneway between Mixner Street and The Rock Bowling Club which has some gigantic potholes and also the laneway between Nicholas and King Street off Mixner Street which also has issues.

Response – Director of Engineering & Environmental Services

The Director advised he will investigate and program any necessary works.

General Manager

The General Manager provided further information on the Regional Health Forum which is being hosted by the Country Mayors Association. He advised the proposed tour of the Transgrid Workers Camp has been postponed until after 25 September, possibly 3 October. Councillors can register their interest in attending with the General Manager.

Director of Corporate & Community Services

The Director gave an update on Lockhart OOSH which opened mid-Term 2 and did not receive many enrolments initially. Vacation care and Term 3 have not seen an increase on the minimal enrolments.

This is page 37 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Monthly Meeting of the Lockhart Shire Council held in the Council Chamber, 65 Green Street, Lockhart – 21 August 2023.

CHAIRPERSON

Originally, 8-10 families expressed interest but this hasn't translated to enrolments. Advertisements have been placed in football newsletters at Lockhart and Osborne as well as in Council's newsletter. The service will require 10-12 or more enrolments to remain viable. More information will be provided in the first quarterly budget review.

Enrolments at The Rock OOSH have also dropped off slightly. Vacation care at The Rock remains at capacity.

CLOSED SESSION

In accordance with the Local Government Act 1993 the following business is considered to be of a kind referred to in subsection 10A(2) of the Act and should be dealt with as part of the meeting closed to the media and public.

152/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Walker and Marston that Council close the meeting to the public as per section 10A(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993.

The meeting moved into Closed Session at 6.29pm.

153/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Marston and Rockliff that Council move into Open Session.

The meeting moved into Open Session at 6.34pm.

OPEN COUNCIL

The resolution of Council, relating to Item 13, passed while the meeting was closed to the public were read to the meeting by the General Manager.

13. PROPOSED SALE OF LOT 5 REID STREET LOCKHART

(GM: 23/8593)

154/23 RESOLVED on the motion of Crs Rockliff and Walker that Council:

- Authorise the General Manager to negotiate the sale of Lot 5 DP758621 Reid Street Lockhart in accordance with the security of purpose conditions and the updated independent valuation outlined in the report.
- 2) Authorise the Mayor and General Manager to execute the Deed of Agreement for the Construction of a Car Wash under Council's seal.

The meeting concluded at 6.35pm.

The minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 21 August 2023, were confirmed as a true and accurate record at the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 18 September 2023, at which time the signature was hereunto subscribed.

Hub **CHAIRPERSON**